World Sailing Racing Rules Question and Answer Service

Q&A2020. 010
17 August 2020

COVID 19 regulations at events
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Question

How shall COVID-19 government regulations, protocols and guidance be implemented in race
documents?
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Answer

It is not recommended to include legislation, protocols or guidance from external authorities in
an event’s rules, as breaches of such legislation are outside the jurisdiction of event officials and
are subject to changes at short notice.

Most events will need to produce or adopt protocols to ensure compliance with government
COVID-19 regulations and guidance.

Instructions or requests by an event official based on published guidance, protocols or legislation
in effect at a venue at any time are likely to be reasonable. Failure by a competitor or support
person to comply with a reasonable request or instruction may be misconduct and may be
reported to the protest committee under rule 69.

It is recommended that:

1. Any specific guidance or protocols that govern the event are published on the official notice
board in English or in a language that it is reasonable to be understood by all boats affected.
2. Events consider the appointment of an event medical officer to be able to assess any
symptomatic issues and act in accordance with the event protocols.

3. The following sailing instructions are added:

- [DP] Competitors and support persons shall comply with any reasonable request from an event
official. Failure to comply may be misconduct.

- Reasonable actions by event officials to implement COVID-19 guidance, protocols or legislation,
even if they later prove to have been unnecessary, are not improper actions or omissions.

Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.
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Q&A 2020.012
30 August 2020

Improper omission
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Situation
Rule 62.1(a) refers to 'an improper action or omission'’.
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Question 1

Does the word 'improper' apply to an omission?
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Answer 1
Yes.

Question 2

Can the word 'omission' itself imply impropriety?
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Answer 2
No.
‘Omission’ is a neutral word, meaning that something is not done.

Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.
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Question 3

Will any omission by a committee that results in a boat’s score or place in a race or series be,
through no fault of her own, made significantly worse, justify redress?
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Answer 3
No.
Redress is justified only when that omission was improper. See rule 62.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.
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Q&A 2020.014
2 November 2020

Interpretation of ‘shall not cause’ in rule 18.3

Situation 1
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Red completes her tack slightly to leeward and on the limit of being overlapped with Green.
Green's only option is to sail above close hauled to avoid contact with Red
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Question
Did Red break rule 18.37?
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Answer

Yes.

Red caused Green to sail above close-hauled to avoid contact. All other requirements of rule 18.3
were met.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.
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Red completes her tack a quarter of a boat length ahead of Green. Green could have sailed either
to windward or to leeward of Red. If Green had sailed to leeward of Red, she would not be able
to pass the mark on the required side. Green sailed to windward of Red and sailed above
close-hauled to avoid contact with Red
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Question
Did Red break rule 18.37
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Answer
Yes.

See answer 1.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.
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Red completes her tack a quarter of a boat length ahead of Green. Green could have sailed either
to windward or to leeward of Red. Green sailed to leeward of Red. Red does not give Green
mark-room. Green passes the mark on the wrong side.
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Question
Did Red break rule 18.37
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Answer

Yes.

After passing head to wind from port to starboard tack inside the zone, Red did not give
mark-room to Green who was overlapped inside her.
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Situation 4
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Red completes her tack a quarter of a boat length ahead of Green. Green could have sailed either

Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.



to windward or to leeward of Red. If Green had sailed to leeward of Red, she would clearly be
able to pass the mark on the required side. Green sailed to windward of Red and sailed above
close-hauled to avoid contact with Red
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Question
Did Red break rule 18.37?
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Answer

Yes.

Green may choose between the two options available to her, and there is no rule that binds
Green into one of the two options.

8]
(0N

J)—=>FZ ORI LRI BER Z DOEIRAEDEES THIENS, HD Z DDEREEDIED— (Y- #8257 Al (&
ZNAN

Il

Situation 5

Red completes her tack a quarter of a boat length ahead of Green. Green could have sailed either
to windward or to leeward of Red. Green sailed to leeward of Red. Red gives Green mark-room.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.



Question
Did Red break rule 18.37
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Answer
No.
Red complied with the requirements of rule 18.3.
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NOTE

Rule 18.3 does not only apply when luffing above close hauled is the only viable solution. The
word ‘cause’ in the rule refers to a cause-effect relation between the actions of the port-tacker
and the boat sailing on starboard. In the situations above, when the action of Green is a result of
Red’s actions, the ‘cause’ clause of rule 18.3 is satisfied, even if there was another way to avoid
the boat that tacked.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.



World Sailing Racing Rules Question and Answer Service

Q&A 2020.015
2 November 2020

Damage while not racing
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Situation

A boat is sailing in the starting line area before her warning signal. No government rules apply to
the racing area. The sailing instructions state that the starting line will be between a mark at the
port end and a race committee vessel at the starboard end. The boat hits the anchored race
committee vessel, causing serious damage to both. The race committee protests the boat.
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Question 1
Which rules apply
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Answer 1

The race committee vessel is a mark but, as the boat is racing, rule 31, Touching a Mark does not
apply. The boat is sailing in or near the racing area and intends to race while the race committee
vessel is not sailing under the Racing Rules of Sailing, therefore, according to the Part 2 preamble,
the boat shall comply with the International Regulations for Preventing Collisions at Sea
(IRPCAS) with respect to the race committee Vessel.

There are several IRPCAS rules that apply in this situation:

IRPCAS rule 2(a) which refers to ‘the ordinary practice of seamen’ as a general requirement to
act sensibly, overlays the detailed requirements of the IRPCAS. That would seem to include
avoiding an anchored Vessel.

IRPCAS rule 5 specifically requires a vessel to maintain a proper look-out and IRPCAS rules 6
requires a vessel to proceed at a safe speed so that she can take proper and effective action to

Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.



avoid collision.
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Question 2
Provided that the protest is valid, if the boat is found to have broken an IRPCAS rule, may the

protest committee penalize her under rule 64.17
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Answer 2

Yes.

By breaking an IRPCAS rule when meeting a vessel that was not sailing under the rules of Part 2,
the boat did not comply with the preamble to Part 2. Since the boat was not racing at the time of
the incident and provided that no other penalty applies, the protest committee shall disqualify
her from the race sailed nearest in time to that of the incident.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.



World Sailing Racing Rules Question and Answer Service

Q&A 2020.017
2 November 2020

Rule 42 in appendix B

Situation
Rule B4.42 PROPULSION states that rule 42 is changed to: A board shall be propelled only by the
action of the wind on the sail, by the action of the water on the hull and by the unassisted actions
of the competitor. However, significant progress shall not be made by paddling, swimming or
walking.
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Question 1

What is the meaning of significant progress as used in the rule?
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Answer 1
Significant progress implies @ movement to a position that is clearly noticeable to an observer.
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Question 2

Is paddling with the foot while standing on the board, in order to change the board’s direction on
the starting line, considered significant progress?
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Answer 2

Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.



No. Paddling with the foot that only results in a change in the direction of the board, is not
considered significant progress. However, this is an academic question as:

a. paddling with one foot will not only result in a change of direction but will also propel the
board.
b. it is easier and more efficient to change a board’s direction by moving the sail than by

paddling with the foot.
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NOTE

The wording of rule B4.42 PROPULSION is due to change in the next edition of the rules to:

A board shall be propelled only by the action of the wind on the sail and by the action of the water
on the hull, however, pumping or fanning the sail by a competitor is permitted. A board shall not
be propelled by paddling, swimming or walking.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.
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Q&A 2020.018
2 November 2020

Clarifications on changing course
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Situation 1

From position 1 to position 2, Yellow releases her mainsail and slows down. In position 2, Yellow
is stationary with her sails flapping. From position 2 to position 4, Yellow drifts to leeward and
astern because of the effect of the wind, the current and the waves. There is no action of the
crew. In position 4, Yellow pulls her mainsail and accelerates forward.
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Question 1

Did Yellow change course from position 1 to position 3?
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Answer 1

Not applicable.

In the Racing Rules of Sailing the word ‘course’ is used in slightly different senses in different
rules and in relation with time. For instance, the change of course by a right-of-way boat under
rule 16 has to be judged in relation with the keep-clear boat and while the change of course is
happening. Since there is only one boat in the situation, the question is not relevant.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.



Question 2

Did Yellow change course from position 3 to position 5?
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Answer 2
See answer 1
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Question 3

In each of the questions above, does the green or the red arrow represent Yellow’s course?
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Answer 3
See answer 1
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Situation 2

While racing and before the starting signal, Yellow on starboard was stationery and Blue on port
was sailing to pass astern of Yellow. A big wave from a passing vessel hit the starboard side of
Yellow, caused her bow to rotate left and moved Yellow sideways to leeward. Contact occurred
with no damage.
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Question
Did Yellow break rule 16.1?

Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.
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Answer

No.

While racing, boats are continuously affected by waves. The keep clear boat shall anticipate the
effect of the prevailing conditions on the right-of-way boat.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.



World Sailing Racing Rules Question and Answer Service

Q&A 2020.020
2 November 2020

Clarification of the term ‘fetching’ in rule 18.3
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Situation

At a windward mark to be left to port, boat A entered the zone on starboard tack while boat B
passed head to wind in the zone and completed her tack to starboard, below her layline and
overlapped to leeward of boat A. In order to round the mark, she Iuffed, touching the mark and
causing boat A to sail above close-hauled to avoid contact.
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Question 1

Was boat B fetching the mark when she tacked to starboard?
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Answer 1

Yes.

A boat is fetching the mark if she is able to pass to windward of the mark and leave it on the
required side without changing tack. Boat B was able to pass the mark without changing tack;
the fact that she touched it is not relevant. See definition ‘Fetching’.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.



Question 2

Would the answer be different if boat B additionally broke rule 42 in order to round the mark?
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Answer 2
No.
The definition ‘Fetching’ does not have exceptions.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.



World Sailing Racing Rules Question and Answer Service

Q&A 2020.021
2 November 2020

Description of marks and sailing the course
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Situation

The race committee communicates orally, under rule 90.2(c), that the course will be: start, mark
C to port, mark T to starboard, mark CX to starboard, mark J to starboard, mark T to starboard,
mark DP to starboard, finish. The intention of the race committee is that the boats sail the course
in the drawing below.
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Question 1

Is mark T a rounding mark?
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Answer 1

No.

Rule J2.1(5) requires the race committee to identify all rounding marks in relation to rule 28.2.
Mark T is not identified as a rounding mark.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.



Question 2

One of the boats sailed a course as per the drawing bellow. Did she sail the course according to
rule 28?
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Answer 2

Yes.

For the purposes of rule 28.2, the string representing a boat’s track passes each mark on the
required side and in the correct order.
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Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.



World Sailing Racing Rules Question and Answer Service

Q&A 2020.022
2 November 2020

Clarification regarding hearsay evidence
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Situation
2021-2024 Rule 63.6(a) requires the protest committee to take the evidence presented,
including hearsay evidence, of the parties present at the hearing and of their witnesses.

Rule 2021-2024 63.6(c) gives the parties present the right to question any person giving
evidence.

Rule 2021-2024 M3.2 dot 9 states that the protest committee ‘accept written evidence from a
witness who is not available to be questioned only if all parties agree. In doing so they forego
their rights to question that witness.

R

-2021-2024 JRO#RAI 63.6(a)ld. TOTAMEEREEMICHEUHBELZOEADCHISZ2SVIE%Z
EX3&53RHTLD,

-2021-2024 IROFRAN 63.6(c)(F. BRICHEEUHFE(GIEZIZINTOECBHIBEFEZSITVS,
-2021-2024 fROATRIM3.2 D 9 IR}, TOFAMEE R, INTOHEHFENBRBULIBECOHERENS
ENBHTEBRVEEANSOEE TOEEZRIFANDIL, AETHIETHRAS(E TOFEACER I DIEFZINE
IBILIBD.

EHd.

Question

Is there a conflict between those rules?

G
CNSOMRBNRICFBEIBLDON ?

Answer

No.

Written evidence may be presented; the parties present and the protest committee may
question the party presenting the evidence as permitted by rule 63.6(c) and may call other

Q&As reflect the opinion of experienced race officials, they are not authoritative interpretations of the rules.

Q&As only address the specific question and not all of the factors a protest committee will need to consider in a hearing.



witnesses to help resolve any disputed evidence. If the parties agree with the evidence, it shall
be accepted by the protest committee as undisputed. If the parties disagree, the protest
committee shall take into consideration any dispute between the parties when it decides the
weight of the evidence presented.

NOTE
Appendix M describes protest committee procedures and is advisory only.

EETOESZEBLFTED, DFD, HEUHEELTOTANEERE MBI 63.6(c)([CIOTEFAIENDLS
(GEVE R HEEICERITIIENTE, FREBOITVIHSPBHIHHDFRICET S BHICADIEAZIERE
HTE3, TOEFEENABULLVGE, TOTAMNEERE. RENGHIOEH2HIFEIHLEC. HBEEMOH
SPZFEREZRICANBINERSZ,
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fFRI M (&, TOFANEEROFIEZEHIALTSD. BISISBERL,
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